Monroe County And Monroe County Bar Association Assigned Counsel Program

2023 Annual Report

Adam J. Bello, Monroe County Executive Richard V. Tantalo, Director of Public Safety Casandra Rich, Esq., *President, Monroe County Bar Association *2023-2024

Submitted by:

Mark D. Funk, Esq., Assigned Counsel Administrator

Sarah S. Holt, Conflict Defender

Dated: April 30, 2024

Contents

INTRODUCTION	1
To Provide Quality Representation	5 6
NEW ATTORNEYS IN 2023	8
TOTAL CASES REFERRED BY PANEL 2019-2023 ²	9
2023ASSIGNMENTS	10
2023 HOMICIDE ASSIGNMENTS	11
2023 ABC FELONY ASSIGNMENTS	12
2023 DE FELONY ASSIGNMENTS	14
2023 MISDEMEANOR ASSIGNMENTS	16
2023 FAMILY COURT ASSIGNMENTS	20
2023 APPELLATE ASSIGNMENTS	22
2023 COSTS BY ATTORNEY	23
2023 TABLE OF PROGRAM USE BY JUDICIARY	30
2023 CASE BY CASE TYPE	43

Introduction

This was a momentous year in public defense in Monroe County. Three major changes took place during this year. First, the Assigned Counsel Program and Conflict Defender's Office became separate entities. Second, the rate of pay for assigned attorneys increased with the passage of New York State's 2023-2024 budget. Third, the Assigned Counsel Program hired an attorney dedicated to enhancing quality representation provided by assigned counsel panel attorneys.

The Monroe County Assigned Counsel Program marked its thirty-second year of operation in all courts within Monroe County. It was also the twenty-first year of operation for the Conflict Defender's Office. Since the inception of the Conflict Defender's Office more than twenty years ago, the Conflict Defender's Office and Assigned Counsel Program have been a joint office under the same leadership, the Conflict Defender. At the beginning of 20223, Mark D. Funk, Esq. held the position of Conflict Defender. On July 10, 2023, Sarah S. Holt, Esq. was named Monroe County Conflict Defender, while Mark D. Funk, Esq. assumed the title of Assigned Counsel Administrator. Ms. Holt's appointment as Conflict Defender marked the official separation of the two offices into separate entities.

With the offices becoming separate entities, new staff positions needed to be created and filled. When the offices were combined, a number of support staff members performed tasks associated with both parts of the office. As this was no longer possible, new staff were required to be hired. A great deal of planning and coordination was required to evaluate the staffing needs to both the Conflict Defender's Office and Assigned Counsel Program and evaluate the current staff to determine which staff members should be in which office. Support staff members (clerks, paralegals and other administrative staff), with their input, were assigned to one office or the other. Where gaps in service would be created in one office due to the assignment of a staff member to the other office a new positions was created to fill those gaps.

It was determined that Mark D. Funk, Esq. would leave the title of Conflict Defender and become the Assigned Counsel Administrator. Thus, the position of Conflict Defender would need to be filled. After an extensive search process which included the Monroe County Bar Association, the County Executive and the County Legislature, Sarah S. Holt, Esq. was named the Conflict Defender.

All attorney position except for the Assigned Counsel Administrator position and a new position of Resource Attorney would remain with the Conflict Defender's Office.

The positions of Assigned Counsel Administrator and Resource Attorney would be part of the new Assigned Counsel Program.

As of July 10, 2023 when the offices officially split into separate entities, the Assigned Counsel Program staff was comprised of seven staff members: Assigned Counsel Administrator, Resource Attorney, Project Manager, Clerk 1, Clerk 2, Clerk 3 and Special Urban Investigative Assistant (paralegal). All Assigned Counsel Program staff members are paid through New York State grants, not County funds.

The Monroe County Assigned Counsel Program is governed by the joint Monroe County/Monroe County Bar Association Plan for Conflict Assignments adopted in 2003. The Assigned Counsel Program currently has attorneys on eight (8) panels. The current panels that make up the Assigned Counsel Program are the Homicide/Predatory Sexual Offense Panel, the ABC Felony Panel, the DE Felony Panel, the misdemeanor criminal panel, the Raise the Age (Youth Part) Panel, the Probation/Parole Violation Panel, the Family Court Panel and the Appellate Panel. Attorneys on the assigned counsel panels are attorneys in private practice willing to represent indigent clients. An attorney's membership on each panel depends on the complexity of the case and the training, experience and expertise of the attorney. Panel attorneys accept assignments in all courts in Monroe County: all town and village courts, all felony cases, Family Court cases, all statutorily assigned cases in Surrogate and Superior Court as well as all cases where both the Conflict Defender Office and Public Defender's Office has a conflict of interest. In 2023, 149 private attorneys accepted approximately 3,175 assignments.

There was a marked increase in the number of attorneys who accepted assignments this year as opposed to 2022 (149 this year and 130 last year). As part of the New York State budget that was passed in 2023, the assigned counsel rates, set by state statute, was raised for the first time since January 1, 2004. The statutory amendment set the new rate at \$158/hour for all matters. Previously, the rates set in County Law § 722-b were \$60/hour for misdemeanor cases and \$75/hour for felonies, Family Court and appellate matters. The new rates, became effective on April 1, 2023. Also of note, is that New York State has agreed to reimburse Monroe County for 50% of the increased fee.

The increase in rates did not create an influx of trial attorneys willing to join the criminal and Family Court panels, however. The increase in the number of attorneys who accepted assignments in 2023 was mostly due a number of new attorneys on the Appellate panel.

The Assigned Counsel Program did see an influx of attorneys on the Appellate panel. This was not due to the increase in assigned counsel rates however. There has become a scarcity of attorneys in Monroe County who were willing and able to accept appellate assignments. The Assigned Counsel Program was required therefore to widen its pool of appellate attorneys. In the past, the Assigned Counsel Program attempted whenever feasible to assigned appeals to attorneys who live or work in Monroe County. Over the last few years, due to natural attrition (deaths, retirements, new employment) we have lost a number of appellate attorneys including most of the appellate practitioners who work or reside in Monroe County. The Assigned Counsel Program's Appellate Panel is a joint panel with the Appellate Division, Fourth Department, meaning attorneys assigned to appeals of Monroe County cases must be approved by both the Assigned Counsel Program and the Fourth Department, and complete the Fourth Department's specialized training program. The Fourth Department keeps a list of attorneys who have completed the training and are willing to accept assignments. The attorneys on the Fourth Department's list are from all parts of New York State. The Court shared their list with the Assigned Counsel Program and we began actively soliciting attorneys from around New York State to accept assignments of cases on appeal to the Appellate Division, Fourth Department.

The remainder of this report outlines, with statistical information, the Program's success in meeting the goals of the Plan which are articulated here:

"The objectives of this conflict assignments plan are to provide quality representation to eligible indigent defendants or other litigants in those cases where the Public Defender has a conflict of interest; to provide a coordinated and centralized assignment system for conflict cases arising in the courts specified in Article IV herein; to provide a more equitable distribution of conflict assignments among lawyers; to attract more lawyers willing to handle conflict assignments; to maintain uniform and proper billing practices; to ensure cost accountability of services, and to provide increased efficiency for the courts by making qualified attorneys more readily available to handle conflict cases." *Monroe County Bar Association Sponsored Plan for Conflict Assignments*, ARTICLE II. <u>Plan Objectives</u>

"To Provide Quality Representation"

In 2023, the total number of case referrals (see page 9-10) was at 6,969 (combined numbers for the Conflict Defender's Office and Assigned Counsel Program. This number was similar to 2022 (6,900) and up from the Covid years of 2020 and 2021 (two year average of 6,164), but still below the pre-pandemic era as from 2017-2019, the total number of cases was steady at approximately 8,500 each year.

Looking at the Assigned Counsel Program exclusively, the number of assignments in 2023 was also quite similar to 2022 in total and in each category. In 2022, the yearly total of assignments was 3,300, while in 2023 the total was 3,402. There was a notable decrease in Homicide case assignments from 48 in 2022 to 23 in 2023.

All Assigned Counsel panel attorneys have qualified for their respective panels under the enhanced requirements for panel membership that were implemented in 2014 by then-Conflict Defender Charles Noce, Esq. These panel requirements remain in effect in an ongoing effort to continue to maintain and enhance the quality of representation that indigent clients in Monroe County receive.

As the year 2023 began, we hired D. Scott Young, Esq. as the Assigned Counsel Program's first Resource Attorney. This was a new position created with New York State grant funds. Mr. Young has more than thirty years of criminal defense experience and has handled notable cases including earning an acquittal in the Boys & Girls Club murder case. As this was a brand-new position, there was not a template as to how this position should operate. In consultation with the Assigned Counsel Administrator, panel attorneys, judges and others, Mr. Young created this position with the goal of improving the quality of representation that our assigned counsel panel attorneys provide to their clients. Mr. Young will observe attorneys in court and provide feedback to the attorneys. He is available to answer questions and assist attorneys with legal research. He is assembling a data base of experts and other resources that are available to our panel attorneys.

As the Continuing Legal Education (CLE) requirements of all staff attorneys of the Conflict Defender Office and panel attorneys for the Assigned Counsel Program overlap with the Mandatory Continuing Legal Education requirements of the State of New York, compliance is 100%.

However, it is a goal of the Assigned Counsel Program, in conjunction with the appropriate committees of the Monroe County Bar Association, to create more opportunities for training of attorneys.

"To Provide a Coordinated and Centralized Assignment System for Conflict Cases"

The Assigned Counsel Program is fully computerized, and has been through a number of electronic transformations. The initial computer program (2003-2010) entered all cases reported in it to a centralized database that tracked the representation from assignment through payment of the voucher for all cases; both Assigned Counsel and Conflict Defender cases. At the end of calendar year 2011, a new database was purchased for use by the office, and the underlying support system needed for the use of the prior ACP Database was discontinued. This system was in operation from approximately 2011-until August 2016. In August 2016, a new electronic voucher system and overall conflict case assignment database became operational. This current system is essentially paper-less with vouchers being sent to the courts for review electronically. This has resulted in a savings on time and effort, as well as an improvement on efficiency.

Assignments referred by the courts continue to be assigned from a rotating list of qualified attorneys who meet the requirements to be on the varying panels. The program, when used by the Courts, is very successful in ensuring continuity of counsel where a client has additional matters pending in Family Court or is re-arrested on new charges, even when the arrests span differing jurisdictions. Additionally, the program continues to track conflict of interest information so that panel attorneys are not unnecessarily assigned when the Public Defender's Office or Conflict Defender Office could ethically continue.

"To Provide a More Equitable Distribution of Conflict Assignments Among Lawyers"

The Assigned Counsel Program continually strives to improve its system of assignment of conflict cases. The Program constantly attempts to implement new and better systems to distribute assignments more equitably among the participating attorneys.

In criminal cases, the current system is highly effective when fully utilized by the Courts of Monroe County. Only 16% of criminal court assignments came from the bench, the vast majority were through the staff of the Assigned Counsel Program. This percentage remained unchanged from 2022. In Family Court, on the other hand, the equitable distribution of cases remains an issue, as 46% of assignments to panel attorneys in Family Court are still made directly from the bench. This was a slight decrease from

approximately 50% in 2022. It remains a goal of the Assigned Counsel Program to address the inequities in Family Court assignments. The fact that a few attorneys receive the bulk of the assignments places an undue burden on those attorneys and can impact directly on the quality of representation. A number of attorneys who have receive a high percentage of assignments in Family Court have complained of burnout and have limited or stopped taking assignments.

"To Attract More Lawyers Willing to Handle Conflict Assignments"

Included in this report (see page 8) is a list of new panel members added during the 2023 calendar year.

These attorneys were added to the panels under the requirements for panel membership that were implemented in 2014 by then-Conflict Defender Charles Noce, Esq. These panel requirements were created and remain in effect in an ongoing effort to continue to enhance the quality of representation that indigent clients in Monroe County receive.

As explained above, the majority of new attorneys on the panels were added to the Appellate Panel. A concerted recruitment effort was undertaken to add new attorneys to the Appellate Panel.

"To Maintain Uniform and Proper Billing Practices and to Ensure Cost Accountability of Services"

As was the case in previous years, the Assigned Counsel Administrator reviews each voucher to ensure compliance with the voucher regulations and notifies each attorney of any noncompliance to educate the attorney on proper procedures. The review and notification help maintain proper and uniform billing practices among the participating attorneys.

Further, in October 2023, the Assigned Counsel Program held its first annual meeting, mandatory for all panel attorneys. A number of topics were discussed in the meeting. But, a primary focus was on billing expectations.

Having received a Grant from the New York State Office of Indigent Legal Services to fund the purchase of an electronic vouchering system, the system became operational

in August 2016. The use of the electronic voucher system has significantly increased the efficiency and accuracy of reviewing vouchers. This current system is essentially paperless with vouchers being sent to the courts for review electronically. This has resulted in a savings on time and effort, as well as an improvement on efficiency.

"To Provide Increased Efficiency for the Courts"

The Courts that fully utilize the services of the Assigned Counsel Program report a positive impact on the efficiency in obtaining assigned counsel in conflict cases. These Courts report a significant decrease in the burden on the court staff in finding attorneys willing to accept assignments and a prompt response from the Assigned Counsel Program in obtaining assigned counsel.

The electronic voucher system has increased the efficiency in voucher processing. Panel attorneys can access the system from any computer or smart phone with a login username and password. This system requires timely filing of vouchers by assigned counsel. The system allows for ease of review by the Assigned Counsel Administrator. Furthermore, as the vouchers can be transmitted between the Assigned Counsel Program Office and the Courts electronically instead of through the mail, it cuts down on total processing time. Additionally, the system allows for County payment with minimal paperwork.

The efficiency of the Courts has clearly been facilitated by the dedicated attorneys serving on the assigned counsel panels, and the staff attorneys in the Office of the Assigned Counsel Program, while ensuring high quality representation in Family Court, all of the criminal and appellate courts in 2023.

New Attorneys in 2023¹

	How Accombye in 2020							
Panel								
Attorney	ABC Felony	DE Felony	Misdemeanor	Family Court	Appellate	Homicide	Total	
Argy, Keliann					Х			
Ark, Jacob		Х	Х					
Blank, Lynn								
Brownlow, Winston					Х			
Campbell, Brenda				Х				
Carmel, Randall					Х			
Chadwick, Amy					Х			
Coniglio, John			×					
Cummings, Brian		Х	Х					
Davis, Stephanie					Х			
Degnan, Brian					Х			
DiPasquale, Andrew			Х		Х			
Elkovitch, David					Х			
Feldman, Steven					Х			
Gallamore, Robert					Х			
Houck, Michael			×					
Maggio, Frank			×					
Maguire, Samantha			Х					

¹ Panel for which the attorney was approved in 2022. Attorney may have been approved in a previous year for a different panel or panels

			Panel				
Attorney	ABC Felony	DE Felony	Misdemeanor	Family Court	Appellate	Homicide	Total
Monahan, Todd					Х		
Nelson, Benjamin					Х		
Pajak, David					Х		
Pelych, Thomas					Х		
Pesserilo, Ira					Х		
Poulos, Amber					Х		
Reed, Veronica					Х		
Roth, William					Х		
Serbetci, Burak	Х	Х	X				
Siguenza, David		Х	Х	Х			
Swartz, Melissa					Х		
Swift, William		Х	Х				
Tyler, Kenneth					Х		
Warren, Lovely			Х	Х			
Wesley, Sarah	Х	Х	Х	Χ		Х	
Grand Total	1	6	12	4	20	1	44

Total Cases Referred by Panel 2019-2023²

					•			
Year	Homicide	ABC Felony	DE Felony	Misd.	Family	Parole / Probation	Appeal	Total
2023	23	426	677	3213	2509	72	49	6,969

2022	48	511	658	2822	2743	72	46	6,900
2021	41	465	621	1,835	2,742	79	32	5,815
2020	27	798	1,355	1,669	2,386	166	46	6,512
2019	36	748	1,168	2,401	3,798	167	103	8,469

2023 Assignments

The following charts show the assignments each attorney received in 2023. The number of assignments is higher than the number of cases referred because in some cases more than one attorney receives an assignment for a case. Also, an attorney might be assigned in 2023 to a case originally referred in a previous year. This occurs most often after a court relieves one attorney and either the court or the Assigned Counsel Program assigns a new attorney.

Several factors should be considered in looking at these tables. First, approved panel members receive more assignments than non-approved panel members do. Some of the attorneys with a low number of assignments are non-approved panel members. Most often, such an attorney is court (bench) assigned. Secondly, those attorneys gaining membership on a panel for the first time during 2023 will have fewer assignments in that panel because they were not on the panel for an entire year. Thirdly, a number of attorneys decline a significant number of assignments, requested removal from the Program for periods of time or resigned from the Program during 2023. While the report includes non-approved attorneys, new panel members, attorneys declining appointments, and attorneys temporarily removed from panels at their own request, concentrating on those members who participated for the full year as approved members of a particular panel gives a truer picture of the equitable distribution of assignments.

Of particular significance in this report is the fact that in the criminal courts, where the Assigned Counsel Program assigns a large percentage of cases, there is a more even distribution of assignments. This is attributable to the fact that, by comparison, Family Court has a much lower percentage of cases assigned by the Assigned Counsel Program: most assignments are directed by the court. Attaining more equitable distribution of cases is difficult, if not impossible. The Administrator and Advisory Committee must work diligently to provide a workable solution to the inequities of the Family Court assignments. Looking at the last column of the tables, it takes significantly fewer attorneys for the Family Court assignments to reach a high percentage than it does for the criminal court assignments. This is less of a concern since the Conflict Defender Office represents the bulk of the conflict

cases in Family Court. Nonetheless, it is an issue that should be addressed for those cases where the Conflict Defender Office cannot represent the client in Family Court.

2023 Homicide Assignments

Agency	Attorney	_	Referral			
		ACP	Court			
ACP						
	Egan, James	2	0			
	Farrell-Gallagher, Barbara E.	1	0			
	Foti , Mark	1	1			
	Guerrieri, Paul	2	0			
	Hinman, James S.	1	2			
	Jones, Rhian Dudson	2	0			
	Oathout, Bryan	1	0			
	Schiano, Michael P.	2	2			
	Siguenza, Teodoro X	1	0			
	Steinebach, Kyle	2	0			
	Vacca, James P.	7	0			
	Vacca, Jr., Paul J.	1	0			
	Wesley, Sarah	0	1			
	Young, Mark A.	1	0			
	Zimmermann, Jr. (Trevt), Clark J.	2	0			
ACP Total		26	6			

2023 ABC Felony Assignments

Agency	Attorney	F	Grand	
		ACP	Court	Total
ACP				
	Ajaka, Maroun	29	4	33
	Astacio, Leticia D.	5	0	5
	Buettner, Brian C.	1	0	1
	Christie, F James	5	1	6
	Ciardi, Francis M.	17	3	20
	Colavecchia, Gregory J	2	0	2
	Damelio, Joseph S.	6	0	6
	DiSalvo, Thomas J.	2	0	2
	Egan, James	5	0	5
	Farrell-Gallagher, Barbara E.	14	4	18
	Field, Bridget L.	1	1	2
	Fitzgerald , Kevin D.	13	3	16
	Flowerday, Michael D.	2	0	2
	Ganguly, Avik K.	0	1	1
	Geraci, Michael	8	0	8
	Guerrieri, Paul	7	0	7
	Gunther (Foti), Neil W	21	2	23
	Hinman, James S.	4	0	4
	Jones, Rhian Dudson	3	0	3
	Kasperek, Lawrence L.	1	0	1
	Khuns, Kevin M.	0	1	1
	Krane, Joel N.	1	0	1
	Kristal, Peter L.	6	1	7
	Lobosco, Joseph A	13	0	13
	Misula (Ganguly), Roman A	1	1	2
	Monaghan, Lori Robb	1	0	1
	Morabito, Kevin A.	1	0	1
	Napier, James A.	1	1	2
	Napier, Robert A.	2	0	2

	Napolitano, Lorenzo	8	3	11
	Oathout, Bryan	3	0	3
	Pattison, Michael T.	1	0	1
	Perez, Gilbert R.	7	0	7
	Pullano, Peter J.	1	0	1
	Rodeman, Christopher K.	15	0	15
	Roxin, Richard C.	7	0	7
	Russi , Patrick K.	4	0	4
	Schiano, Michael P.	1	2	3
	Shulman, Brian J.	7	0	7
	Siguenza, David	1	0	1
	Siguenza, Teodoro X	25	2	27
	Sperano, Aaron J.	5	0	5
	Steinebach, Kyle	10	8	18
	Vacca, James P.	33	8	41
	Vacca, Jr., Paul J.	15	0	15
	Wells-Spicer, Melissa	7	2	9
	Wesley, Sarah	2	0	2
	West, John R.	2	0	2
	Witmer, Michael J.	21	1	22
	Wood, Robert W.	2	0	2
	Young, Mark A.	21	0	21
	Zimmermann, Jr. (Trevt), Clark J.	6	1	7
ACP Total		376	50	426
	Grand Total			426

2023 DE Felony

Assignments

Agency	Attorney	Re	Grand	
		ACP	Court	Total
ACP				
	Abbatoy, Jr., David M.	0	1	1
	Abbott (Fitzs), Jason E.	2	0	2
	Ajaka, Maroun	14	1	15
	Annechino, John A.	4	0	4
	Ark, Jacob	2	0	2
	Astacio, Leticia D.	15	3	18
	Bitetti, Gary	6	1	7
	Buettner, Brian C.	13	2	15
	Chait, Mitchell A.	1	0	1
	Christie, F James	9	1	10
	Ciardi, Francis M.	12	1	13
	Cole, James	11	2	13
	Comfort, Schauna	6	0	6
	Cummings, Brian T	1	0	1
	Damelio, Joseph S.	1	1	2
	DiSalvo, Thomas J.	2	0	2
	Egan, James	7	1	8
	Farrell-Gallagher, Barbara E.	14	4	18
	Fitzgerald , Kevin D.	5	0	5
	Flowerday, Michael D.	7	1	8
	Fulmer, Daniel C.	2	0	2
Agency	Attorney	Referral	Grand Total	Agency
	Geraci, Michael	11	0	11
	Guerrieri, Paul	4	1	5
	Gunther (Foti), Neil W	6	1	7
	Hinman, James S.	9	6	15
	Indralingam, Rebecca A	12	1	13

Johnson, Christopher G.	16	3	19
Jones, Rhian Dudson	1	1	2
Karatas, Nigos	1	0	1
Khuns, Kevin M.	15	1	16
Krane, Joel N.	6	1	7
Kristal, Peter L.	21	2	23
Lobosco, Joseph A	11	0	11
Masny, Daniel	34	4	38
Misula (Ganguly), Roman A	4	1	5
Morabito, Kevin A.	3	1	4
Murante, Kathleen	15	0	15
Naclerio (Trevtt), Jessica	1	1	2
Napier, James A.	7	1	8
Napier, Robert A.	2	0	2
Napolitano, Lorenzo	5	1	6
Oathout, Bryan	0	1	1
Pattison, Michael T.	5	2	7
Perez, Gilbert R.	12	0	12
Pieper, Lindsey	40	4	44
Pilato , David C.	12	2	14
Pullano, Peter J.	1	0	1
Rich, Matthew J.	0	1	1
Robinson-Ferrer, Safa	2	0	2
Rodeman, Christopher K.	8	2	10
Roxin, Richard C.	1	0	1
Russi, Patrick K.	5	0	5
Schiano, Michael P.	3	0	3
Serbetci, Burak	8	1	9
Sercu, Stephen	2	0	2
Serles, Alex	10	0	10
Shulman, Brian J.	12	0	12
Siguenza, David	9	3	12
Siguenza, Teodoro X	5	0	5
Sperano, Aaron J.	6	1	7
Steinebach, Kyle	7	4	11
Sullivan, Joseph	1	0	1

Agency	Attorney	Referral	Grand Total	Agency
	Swift, William M	5	2	7
	Taha (ETK), Yousef N	7	2	9
	Thomas-Diaz, Kathleen	4	1	5
	Vacca, James P.	11	2	13
	Vacca, Jr., Paul J.	4	0	4
	Wade, David	4	1	5
	Wagner, Catherine M.	8	1	9
	Wells-Spicer, Melissa	13	1	14
	West, John R.	14	1	15
	Wild, Derek Sean	5	3	8
	Willman, Adam	11	1	12
	Witmer, Michael J.	7	0	7
	Wood, Robert W.	1	0	1
	Young, Mark A.	28	5	33
	Zimmermann, Jr. (Trevt), Clark J.	3	0	3
ACP Total		592	86	678
	Grand Total			678

2023 Misdemeanor Assignments

Agency	Attorney		Referral	Grand
		ACF	Court	Total
	Abbott (Fitzs), Jason E.	4	0	4
	Ajaka, Maroun	17	3	20
	Annechino, John A.	7	0	7
	Ark, Jacob	4	10	14
	Astacio, Leticia D.	7	5	12
	Bitetti, Gary	6	3	9
	Buettner, Brian C.	15	5	20
	Catalano, Christian A.	3	0	3
	Chait, Mitchell A.	9	0	9

Agency	Attorney	Referral	Grand Total	Agency
	Christie, F James	10	2	12
	Ciardi, Francis M.	12	5	17
	Cole, James	2	2	4
	Comfort, Schauna	6	0	6
	Coniglio, John M	2	0	2
	Cummings, Brian T	3	0	3
	DiPasquale, Andrew J	6	1	7
	DiSalvo, Thomas J.	2	1	3
	Egan, James	1	2	3
	Farrell-Gallagher, Barbara E.	14	3	17
	Fitzgerald , Kevin D.	2	1	3
	Flowerday, Michael D.	15	0	15
	Foti , Mark	0	1	1
	Fulmer, Daniel C.	13	0	13
	Geraci, Michael	13	3	16
	Guerrieri, Paul	5	0	5
	Gunther (Foti), Neil W	8	1	9
	Hinman, James S.	8	7	15
	Houck, Michael T	3	0	3
	Howard, Frank Jesse	25	2	27
	Indralingam, Rebecca A	2	0	2
	Johnson, Christopher G.	14	5	19
	Karatas, Nigos	11	0	11
	Khuns, Kevin M.	29	6	35
	Krane, Joel N.	10	1	11
	Kristal, Peter L.	18	3	21
	Leichtner, Edward J.	11	0	11
	Lobosco, Joseph A	8	0	8
	Maggio, Frank G.	5	0	5
	Maguire, Samantha	5	0	5
	Masny, Daniel	9	8	17
	McClenathan, Edward W.	4	0	4
	Misula (Ganguly), Roman A	2	1	3
	Monna, Christopher D	14	1	15
	Morabito, Andrew	6	0	6
	Morabito, David Jr	3	0	3

Agency	Attorney	Referral	Grand Total	Agency
	Morabito, Kevin A.	2	1	3
	Murante, Kathleen	16	1	17
	Naclerio (Trevtt), Jessica	1	0	1
	Napier, James A.	6	0	6
	Napolitano, Lorenzo	2	1	3
	Oathout, Bryan	1	0	1
	Pattison, Michael T.	4	6	10
	Perez, Gilbert R.	9	7	16
	Pieper, Lindsey	49	19	68
	Pilato , David C.	9	1	10
	Plukas, Joseph	7	0	7
	Robinson-Ferrer, Safa	0	1	1
	Rodeman, Christopher K.	5	1	6
	Rowe, Stephanie	23	3	26
	Roxin, Richard C.	1	0	1
	Russi , Patrick K.	8	1	9
	Scibetta, Michael P.	9	0	9
	Serbetci, Burak	12	1	13
	Sercu, Stephen	19	2	21
	Serles, Alex	33	4	37
	Shafer, Brandy L	29	4	33
	Shepard, Zuleika Z.	0	2	2
	Shulman, Brian J.	1	1	2
	Siguenza, David	10	4	14
	Siguenza, Teodoro X	4	2	6
	Sperano, Aaron J.	9	1	10
	Steinebach, Kyle	5	1	6
	Sullivan, Joseph	11	0	11
	Swift, William M	6	0	6
	Taha (ETK), Yousef N	7	5	12
	Thomas-Diaz, Kathleen	8	2	10
	Vacca, James P.	13	5	18
	Vacca, Jr., Paul J.	3	2	5
	Wade, David	12	5	17

Agency	Attorney	Referral	Grand Total	Agency
	Wagner, Catherine M.	12	0	12
	Warrren, Lovely A	17	1	18
	Wells-Spicer, Melissa	5	0	5
	Wesley, Sarah	0	1	1
	West, John R.	26	7	33
	Wild, Derek Sean	4	0	4
	Willman, Adam	12	4	16
	Witmer, Michael J.	8	1	9
	Young, Mark A.	22	10	32
	Zimmermann, Jr. (Trevt), Clark J.	2	1	3
ACP Total		815	190	1,005
CDO				
	Andrews, Kenneth	383	0	383
	Crimi, Joseph P.	8	0	8
	Koshykar, Cathleen	200	1	201
	Lakhlani, Kunal	205	0	205
	Londoño , Katherine	280	2	282
	Mills-Lexvold, Calder	296	0	296
	Molodetz, Emma	385	0	385
	Ryan, Scott A.	224	0	224
	Solomon, R. Adrian	224	1	225
CDO Total		2,205	4	2,209
	Grand Total			3214

2023 Family Court Assignments

Agency	Attorney	erral	Grand	
		ACP	Court	Total
ACP				
	Ajaka, Maroun	11	15	26
	Altman, Jonathon	1	0	1
	Annechino, John A.	6	1	7
	Astacio, Leticia D.	15	0	15
	Baker, Lawrence	15	0	15
	Bourne, Leah K.	21	12	33
	Buettner, Brian C.	17	12	29
	Campbell, Brenda Goldstein	10	0	10
	Carling, Alison M	1	1	2
	Carson, Craig D	13	0	13
	Chait, Mitchell A.	20	12	32
	Chase, Carolyn L.	9	15	24
	Comfort, Schauna	0	5	5
	DeJohn, Timothy W.	1	0	1
	Demo-Vazquez, Kristine M.	11	0	11
	Farr, William H.	19	50	69
	Farrell-Gallagher, Barbara E.	20	16	36
	Fifield, Sarah G.	7	41	48
	Flowerday, Michael D.	19	3	22
	Handelman, Eric D.	2	10	12
	Hartzell, Jr., Thomas C.	2	0	2
	Hinman, James S.	2	10	12
	Howard, Frank Jesse	22	2	24
	Indralingam, Rebecca A	9	3	12
	Jones, Rhian Dudson	1	0	1
	Karatas, Nigos	9	12	21
	Khuns, Kevin M.	7	18	25
	Korotkin, Alexander	7	0	7
	Kristal, Peter L.	20	5	25
	Lagoe, Victoria M.	10	6	16
	Lamb, Meredith M. B.	9	14	23
	Leichtner, Edward J.	17	0	17
	Levitsky, Steven Brian	13	19	32
	Maslow, Lisa J.	1	3	4

Agency	Attorney	Refe	erral	Grand
		ACP	Court	Total
	McClenathan, Edward W.	14	13	27
	Merante, RoseMaria	2	4	6
	Morabito, Andrew	0	1	1
	Morabito, David Jr	23	1	24
	Morabito, David R.	6	0	6
	Morabito, Kevin A.	8	4	12
	Napolitano, Lorenzo	1	1	2
	Narang, Charu	4	0	4
	Nevarez, Juan A.	16	0	16
	Oathout, Bryan	5	18	23
	Perez, Gilbert R.	13	58	71
	Quattrini, Camille R	7	0	7
	Reed, Maria J.	1	4	5
	Rich, Matthew J.	0	2	2
	Shepard, Zuleika Z.	5	6	11
	Siguenza, David	7	0	7
	Siragusa, Lisa Serio	0	3	3
	Steinebach, Kyle	9	1	10
	Vacca, James P.	1	0	1
	Van Loon, Nathan Allen	4	6	10
	Vanderbrook, Laura A	3	1	4
	Warrren, Lovely A	24	0	24
	Wesley, Sarah	1	0	1
	West, John R.	11	11	22
	Williams, Sandra Marie	6	2	8
	Witmer, Michael J.	5	2	7
	Woods, Katharine Falconer	15	44	59
ACP Total		538	467	1,005
CDO				
	Bierley, Sarah	236	0	236
	Callanan, Karen Smith	237	3	240
	Holt, Sarah	69	0	69
	Korus, Katelyn	282	0	282
	Kovalsky, Shaina	232	3	235
	Olin, Cynthia M	70	6	76

Agency	Attorney		Referral	
		AC	P Court	Total
	Palmisano, Chelsea	225	2	227
	Young, Autumn	172	6	178
CDO Total		1,523	20	1,543
	Grand Total			2548

2023 Appellate Assignments

Agency Attorney			Referral	Grand
		AC	P Court	Total
	Abbatoy, Jr., David M.	0	1	1
	Argy, Keliann M	2	0	2
	Blue, Tyson	1	0	1
	Carmel, Randall	1	2	3
	Chadwick, Amy	1	0	1
	Cirando, John A.	1	0	1
	Davis, Stephanie	1	0	1
	Degnan, Brian P	1	0	1
	Elkovitch, David	1	0	1
	Feldman, Steven	1	0	1
	Field, Bridget L.	2	0	2
	Funk, Mark D.	1	0	1
	Gallamore, Robert J	1	0	1
	Monahan, Todd G	1	0	1
	Napolitano, Lorenzo	1	0	1
	Nelson, Benjamin L	1	0	1
	Reed, Veronica	1	0	1
	Roth, William	1	0	1
	Swartz, Melissa K	1	1	2
	Tyler, Kenneth H	3	0	3
	Wells-Spicer, Melissa	1	0	1
	Whiteside, Mary M	1	0	1
ACP Total		25	4	29

Agency	Attorney		Referral	Grand
		ACP	Court	Total
CDO				
	Reardon, Kathleen P.	6	0	6
	Santacroce, Fabienne	8	0	8
	Walther, Carolyn R	7	0	7
CDO Total		21	0	21
	Grand Total			50

 Note: In 2023 a number of cases were assigned to ACP attorneys due to a conflict of interest with The Conflict Defender Office, as well as due to the fact that many cases were so old even at the time of initial assignment that they needed to be assigned out pursuant to an OILS grant to handle the backlog of appeals.

2023 Costs by Attorney

Attorney / Law Firm Full Name	Cost / Law Firm
Abbatoy, Jr., David M.	Easton Thompson Kasperek Shiffrin
Abbott (Fitzs), Jason E.	\$7,323.00
Affronti, Lorna R.	AFFRONTI LLC
Ajaka, Maroun	\$99,460.90
Altman, Jonathon	\$6,240.00
Annechino, John A.	\$8,478.70
Ark, Jacob	\$3,412.80
Astacio, Leticia D.	\$27,308.10
Baker, Lawrence	\$24,716.40
Bates, Alison	Wesley Clark & Bates

Attorney / Law Firm Full Name	Cost / Law Firm
Bitetti, Gary	\$14,520.90
Bourne, Leah K.	\$252.80
Buettner, Brian C.	\$28,873.58
Cambareri & Brenneck.	\$652.10
Carling, Alison M	\$1,006.30
Catalano, Christian A.	\$1,090.20
Chase, Carolyn L.	\$18,930.30
Christie, F James	\$48,986.00
Christopher G. Johnson Atorney at Law	\$33,821.40
Ciardi, Francis M.	\$87,977.09
Clark (WC&B), Kevin	Wesley Clark & Bates
Colavecchia, Gregory J	The Law Office of Robert King
Cole, James	\$63,966.80
Comfort, Schauna	\$17,497.30
Coniglio, John M	\$474.00
Czapranski, Kimberly J	\$25,735.91
Damelio, Joseph S.	\$117,444.30
Davison Law Office	\$4,929.56
Davison, Mark C.	Davison Law Office
Davison, Mary P.	Davison Law Office
DeJohn, Timothy W.	\$25,163.60
Demo-Vazquez, Kristine M.	\$32,507.50
DeValk Power Lair Warner	\$576.05
DiPasquale, Andrew J	\$2,069.80

Attorney / Law Firm Full Name	Cost / Law Firm
DiSalvo, Thomas J.	\$7,849.00
Duke, Susan	Duke Law Firm P.C.
Easton Thompson Kasperek Shiffrin	\$93,841.90
Easton, William T.	Easton Thompson Kasperek Shiffrin
Egan, James	\$20,611.30
Farr, William H.	\$40,734.90
Farrell-Gallagher, Barbara E.	\$105,135.90
Feldman, Steven	Davison Law Office
Field, Bridget L.	\$25,846.76
Fifield, Sarah G.	\$62,008.70
Fitzgerald , Kevin D.	\$60,413.36
Foti , Mark	Foti Law Firm
Foti Law Firm	\$97,300.20
Friedman, Kathryn	\$22,880.97
Fulmer, Daniel C.	\$10,349.40
Fusco (Trevt), Emily	Trevett Cristo
Ganguly Brothers	\$23,439.30
Ganguly, Avik K.	Ganguly Brothers
Gavenda, Aaron M	\$345.00
Geraci, Michael	\$111,284.30
Greeley, Kristin B	Law office of Kristin B Greeley Esq
Guerrieri, Paul	\$145,366.11
Gunther (Foti), Neil W	Foti Law Firm
Handelman, Eric D.	\$5,981.20

Attorney / Law Firm Full Name	Cost / Law Firm
Hartzell, Jr., Thomas C.	\$7,620.00
Hinman, James S.	\$71,723.25
Housel, Jason M.	Sperano & Housel
Howard, Frank Jesse	\$55,524.90
Indralingam, Rebecca A	\$98,003.50
Johnson, Christopher G.	Christopher G. Johnson Atorney at Law
Jones, Rhian Dudson	\$56,217.85
KBMJ&GLLP	\$5,518.16
Karatas, Nigos	\$25,805.93
Kasperek, Lawrence L.	Easton Thompson Kasperek Shiffrin
Khuns, Kevin M.	\$63,725.30
Krane, Joel N.	\$35,645.69
Kristal, Peter L.	\$44,180.20
Lagoe, Victoria M.	\$9,594.80
Lamb, Meredith M. B.	\$10,892.30
Lembke, Matthew R.	\$36,051.80
Levitsky, Steven Brian	\$55,471.75
Lobosco, Joseph A	\$37,915.40
Maslow, Lisa J.	\$8,225.44
Masny, Daniel	\$37,082.70
McCann , Jennifer	McCann Firm
McClenathan, Edward W.	\$21,216.10
McMullen (KBMJ&G), Margaret	KBMJ&GLLP
Meabon (ETK), Paul	Easton Thompson Kasperek Shiffrin
Merante, RoseMaria	\$7,533.50

Attorney / Law Firm Full Name	Cost / Law Firm
Misula (Ganguly), Roman A	Ganguly Brothers
Monaghan, Lori Robb	\$11,752.40
Monna, Christopher D	\$7,194.20
Morabito, Andrew	\$9,209.45
Morabito, David Jr	\$65,003.46
Morabito, David R.	\$12,936.19
Morabito, Kevin A.	\$11,122.39
Muldoon , Gary	KBMJ&GLLP
Muldoon, Ryan	\$12,630.91
Murante, David A.	\$34,324.00
Murante, Kathleen	\$75,422.80
Naclerio (Trevtt), Jessica	Trevett Cristo
Napier, James A.	\$18,362.00
Napier, Robert A.	\$25,430.10
Napolitano, Lorenzo	\$27,120.42
Narang, Charu	\$9,757.41
Nevarez, Juan A.	\$13,796.40
Oathout, Bryan	\$80,770.80
Pattison, Michael T.	\$46,750.00
Perez, Gilbert R.	\$54,353.10
Peshkin, Amber	Wesley Clark & Bates
Pieper, Lindsey	\$93,850.30
Pilato , David C.	\$8,156.60
Plukas, Joseph	\$9,267.11
Pullano, Peter J.	\$25,768.86

Attorney / Law Firm Full Name	Cost / Law Firm
Quattrini, Camille R	\$884.80
Reed, Maria J.	\$10,192.50
Rich, Matthew J.	\$36,655.27
Robinson-Ferrer, Safa	\$6,577.20
Rodeman, Christopher K.	\$24,068.50
Rowe, Stephanie	\$5,792.00
Roxin, Richard C.	\$37,013.40
Ruetz, Zachary T.	\$8,248.00
Russi , Patrick K.	\$17,355.60
Schiano, Michael P.	\$165,535.80
Scibetta, Michael P.	\$8,753.54
Serbetci, Burak	\$237.00
Sercu, Stephen	\$2,657.00
Serles, Alex	\$28,567.00
Shafer, Brandy L	Christopher G. Johnson Atorney at Law
Shay, Megan E	DeValk Power Lair Warner
Shepard, Zuleika Z.	\$6,355.90
Shiffrin, Brian	Easton Thompson Kasperek Shiffrin
Shulman, Brian J.	\$59,818.20
Siguenza, David	\$4,539.20
Siguenza, Teodoro X	\$58,593.70
Sperano & Housel	\$49,965.90
Sperano, Aaron J.	Sperano & Housel
Steinberg, Michael S.	\$945.00

Attorney / Law Firm Full Name	Cost / Law Firm
Steinebach, Kyle	\$70,413.80
Steinman, Charles	\$570.00
Sullivan, Joseph	\$3,482.40
Swartz, Melissa K	Cambareri & Brenneck.
Swift, William M	\$6,983.60
Taha (ETK), Yousef N	\$1,305.00
Thomas-Diaz, Kathleen	\$17,083.00
Thompson, Donald M.	Easton Thompson Kasperek Shiffrin
Trevett Cristo	\$77,630.10
Vacca, James P.	\$175,132.10
Vacca, Jr., Paul J.	\$117,842.96
Van Loon, Nathan Allen	\$2,952.60
Wade, David	\$17,904.20
Wagner Litigation Partners PLLC	\$18,637.47
Wagner, Catherine M.	Wagner Litigation Partners PLLC
Waldman, Cara A.	\$9,082.87
Warrren, Lovely A	\$12,846.80
Watkins, Paul B.	\$10,000.00
Wells-Spicer, Melissa	\$138,419.81
Wesley (Wcp), Sarah	Wesley Clark & Bates
Wesley, Sarah	Easton Thompson Kasperek Shiffrin
West, John R.	\$60,543.80
Whiteside, Mary M	\$2,105.97
Wild, Danielle	\$1,927.50
Wild, Derek Sean	\$15,848.00

Attorney / Law Firm Full Name	Cost / Law Firm
Williams, Sandra Marie	\$14,319.69
Willman, Adam	\$34,737.30
Witmer, Michael J.	\$82,473.20
Wood, Robert W.	\$10,661.20
Woods, Katharine Falconer	\$34,846.70
Young, D. Scott	\$54,536.65
Young, Mark A.	\$112,927.75
Zimmermann, Jr. (Trevt), Clark J.	Trevett Cristo
Grand Total	\$4,515,701

2023 Table of Program Use by Judiciary³

The table below shows the number of assignments for each Judge making at least one assignment during 2022. The statistics, between this chart and the attorney assignments, clearly show that Rochester City Court, which assigns the greatest number of cases in the County, is very high in percentage of cases assigned through the Assigned Counsel Program. These facts directly correlate to the fact that the distribution of cases among the attorneys is greatest for criminal cases. Conversely, the statistics show that Family Court has a much lower percentage of cases assigned through the Assigned Counsel Program when removing those cases assigned to the Conflict Defender Office. There has been some progress in Family Court toward the increased use of the Assigned Counsel Program.

Judge	ACP	Court	Total
Andrews Jr, William G.	12	2	14
Ansaldi, Michael T	10	5	15
Appellate Division, -	48	7	55
Argento, Victoria M.	14	3	17

³ The assignment numbers are higher here because unlike reporting of attorney assignments where only new assignments are reported, all assignments made by the Judges are counted here. These numbers include those cases handled by the Office of the Conflict Defender.

Judge	ACP	Court	Total
Bailey-Turner, Karen	17	2	19
Barrett, Melissa	452	12	464
Bartus, Kelly G	13	0	13
Bayly-Henshaw, Nicole	141	7	148
Bernacki, John E.	10	5	15
Briggs, Cara M.	0	1	1
Buitrago, Maritza	24	0	24
Calvaruso, Edmund A.	0	1	1
Cassara, Frank M	53	7	60
Ciaccio, Arnold F.	1	0	1
Ciaccio, Christopher	0	3	3
Colavecchia , Gregory J	7	3	10
Conley, Tanya	6	0	6
Connors, Robert P.	13	8	21
Cook, Robert L	31	5	36
Crimi, Jr., Charles F.	309	16	325
Crowder, Debra	37	14	51
Cubillo Reed, Maria	79	4	83
Devoe, Jennifer Whitman	54	3	57
Dinolfo, Vincent M.	7	6	13
DiSalvo, Thomas J.	48	4	52
Dixon, Maija C.	280	4	284
Dollinger, Michael	32	11	43
Dollinger, Richard A.	1	0	1

Judge	ACP	Court	Total
Donsky, Steven M.	35	2	37
Elliott, Jack E.	8	7	15
Evangelista, Ronald G.	19	0	19
Falk, John A.	33	1	34
Givens, Deral D	123	65	188
Gordon, Julie Anne	74	1	75
Granville, Brett C	55	7	62
Greco, Dennis J	8	0	8
Green, Brian	2	0	2
Grippe, Jacquelyn	456	16	472
Hahn, Julie	50	2	52
Healy, Richard M	2	0	2
Johnson, Teresa D.	261	8	269
Klonick, Thomas A	8	2	10
Knab, Donald	0	1	1
Lee, Latoya	264	7	271
Lind, Darius	147	0	147
Lopez, Michael C	356	19	375
MacFadyen, Gavin	1	0	1
Maier, Martin	3	0	3
Marianetti, Brian	79	4	83
Martin, Christopher R	6	1	7
Martin, Rashondra M	15	0	15
Mazzo, Alecia	237	18	255

Judge	ACP	Court	Total
McCarthy, Martin P	2	0	2
Menard, John I	195	3	198
Metzler, Paula C	30	3	33
Michel, Susan J	41	2	43
Miller, Stephen T.	7	4	11
Monachino, Amy L	19	0	19
Moran, Thomas E.	12	12	24
Morris, Karen	27	2	29
Morris, Nicole D.	258	24	282
Morrison, Caroline E	13	0	13
Mulley, James	15	0	15
Murante, David A.	3	3	6
Nesser, Joseph G.	181	75	256
NO, JUDGE	14	1	15
O'Keefe, Shannon	75	10	85
Okolowicz, Scott K.	1	0	1
Owlett, Deborah	8	0	8
Parenti, Carmen R.	1	0	1
Patterson, Constance A	258	2	260
Penders, Ian E	7	2	9
Perry, Anthony	12	1	13
Piampiano, James J.	1	0	1
Pilato, Linda Lohner	3	0	3
Polito, Thomas W.	137	0	137

Judge	ACP	Court	Total
Pupatelli, Peter P.	73	12	85
Randall, Doug A.	22	9	31
Rath, Paul S.	4	0	4
Reichert, Alban J.	1	0	1
Reid, Fatimat	134	94	228
Renzi, Alexander	5	12	17
Romeo, Stacey	96	95	191
Ruhlmann, Dandrea L.	135	129	264
Russi, Patrick	35	5	40
Santariello, Michael	1	0	1
Schiano, Jr., Charles A.	6	9	15
Schiano, Michael Patrick	1	3	4
Sciortino, Michael A.	5	1	6
Seppeler, Christine	28	5	33
Sinclair, Judith A	7	6	13
Sisson, Jacqueline	0	2	2
Smith, Michael J	3	0	3
Splain, Kristin	322	1	323
Steinman, Charles	9	7	16
Stowe, Eric W	15	1	16
Stowe, Richard E.	1	0	1
Tallon, Michael	3	0	3
Teator, Mary E	18	0	18
Vacca, Meredith A	29	22	51

Judge	ACP	Court	Total
Valencia, Sara	3	0	3
Valentino, Joseph J.	21	0	21
Valleriani, Samuel L.	1	0	1
Walsh Jr, James E.	5	27	32
White, Van	308	9	317
Wilcox, Christopher T.	5	1	6
Grand Total	6,557	888	7,445

Primary Charge	# Cases
440 Motion - Sentencing	7
Abandonment of a Child	1
Act Manor Injur Child < 17	6
Adoption	3
Agg. DWI	16
Agg. DWI with Child 1st	1
Agg. DWI: Passenger <16-1 Prior Conv	2
Agg. Family Offense	6
Agg. Harassment 1	1
Agg. Harassment 2	81
Agg. Harassment 2 HT	1
Agg. Sex Abuse 2	1
Agg. Unlic Oper 1 (10 Prior Suspensions)	7
Agg. Unlic Oper 2 (3 Prior Suspensions)	5
Agg. Unlic Oper 2 - Prior Mand Susp	1
Agg. Unlic Oper MV	11
Agg. Unlic Oper MV 3	46
Agg. Unlic Oper MV-2nd	33

Primary Charge	# Cases
Agg. Unlic Operation 1	8
Agg. Unlic Operation 1:10/M	2
Aggressive Panhandling	3
Animal Cruelty	2
Animal Cruelty (torture/injury)	3
Appeal-Criminal Court (Fel.)	31
Appeal-Criminal Court (Misd.)	3
Appeal-Family Court	16
Appeal-Felony	13
Appeal-Parole Violation	1
Arson 1	1
Arson 2	1
Arson 2, Att.	1
Arson 4	1
Arson 5	11
Assault 1	14
Assault 2	55
Assault 2 Inj w/Weap	20
Assault 2, Att.	2
Assault 3	222
Auto Strip 2	3
Auto Strip 3	1
Bribing a Witness	3
Burglary 1	7
Burglary 1: Display Loaded	2
Firearem	2
Burglary 1: Illegal Entry Dwelling-C	2
	40
Burglary 2 Burglary 2, Att.	1
Burglary 2: Illegal Entry	2
Burglary 3	57
Burglary 3, Att.	1
• •	50
Child Protective Proceeding: CO Child Protective Proceedings	251
	251
Conspiracy 6	2
Conspiracy 6 Consuming Alcohol in Public	1
Course Sex Conduct Child 1	2
Course Sex Conduct Child 1	

Primary Charge	# Cases
Criminal Contempt 1	67
Criminal Contempt 1, Aggravated	6
Criminal Contempt 2	257
Criminal Contempt, Aggr/Violate	2
Criminal Impersonation 2	10
Criminal Injection with Narcotic	
Drug	1
Criminal Mischief 2	9
Criminal Mischief 3	28
Criminal Mischief 4	413
Criminal Nuisance 2	2
Criminal Obstruc Breath or Blood	111
Criminal Poss. Controlled	10
Substance 1	12
Criminal Poss. Controlled	8
Substance 2	8
Criminal Poss. Controlled	112
Substance 3	112
Criminal Poss. Controlled	2
Substance 4	_
Criminal Poss. Controlled	5
Substance 5	_
Criminal Poss. Controlled	38
Substance 7	4
Criminal Poss. Firearm	1
Criminal Poss. Firearm 2	4
Criminal Poss. Forged Instrument	5
2nd Criminal Poss. Forged Instrument	
3rd	1
Criminal Poss. Narco Drug Inst	2
Criminal Poss. Stolen Property 2	4
Criminal Poss. Stolen Property 3	64
Criminal Poss. Stolen Property 4	35
Criminal Poss. Stolen Property 4:	
Firearms	2
Criminal Poss. Stolen Property 5	21
Criminal Poss. Weapon 2	74
Criminal Poss. Weapon 2:	120
Loaded Firearm	129

Primary Charge	# Cases
Criminal Poss. Weapon 3	24
Criminal Poss. Weapon 4	4
Criminal Poss. Weapon 4, Att.	1
Criminal Possesion Cannabis 1	1
Criminal Possession Firearm	1
Criminal Fossession Filearni Criminal Sale Firearm 3	1
Criminal Sale Filearni 3 Criminal Sale of Controlled	1
Substance 1	2
Criminal Sale of Controlled	
Substance 3	2
Criminal Sexual Act 1	2
Criminal Sexual Act 2	1
Criminal Sexual Act 3	1
Criminal Tampering 3	1
Criminal Transpering 3	44
Criminal Trespass 2	28
Criminal Use Firearm 1	1
Custody/Visitation	1566
Disorderly Conduct	29
Drive MV w/out Proper License	2
Driving While Ability Impaired	29
Driving While Intoxicated	137
Driving While Intoxicated (Fel.)	6
DWAI Alcohol-CMV- 2 Prior Conv	1
DWAI Comb Drugs/Alcohol	7
DWAI Comb Drugs/Alcohol: 1	-
Prior	1
DWAI Drugs (DC)	7
DWI .08 of 1% or More Alco-	1
Opper 2 Prior	1
DWI Oper Spec Veh w/.08 of 1%	0
Alc-1st Offense	8
Endangering Welfare Child	67
Endangering Welfare Child, Att.	1
Escape 3	3
Exposure of Person	2
Fail to Reg: Sex Offense 1st	1
Offense	·
Fail to Report Change Sex Off	3
False Personation	18

Primary Charge	# Cases
Falsely Reporting Incident 2	3
Falsely Reporting Incident 3	8
Falsifying Business Records 1	2
Family Offense Court Places R	630
Filing False Instrument 1st	1
Forcible Touching	11
Forgery 2	1
Fugitive from Justice (F)	1
Fugitive from Justice from Out of	2
State	
Gang Assault 2	2
Grand Larceny 1	3
Grand Larceny 2	3
Grand Larceny 3	37
Grand Larceny 3, Att.	1
Grand Larceny 4	79
Harassment	1
Harassment 2	526
Hindering Prosecution 2	1
Identity Theft 1	1
Identity Theft 2	1
Identity Theft 3	2
Insurance Fraud 3	1
Insurance Fraud 5	5
Insurance Violation	1
Investigation (Felony)	6
Investigation (Misd)	2
Kidnapping 2	4
Leave Scene of Accident	1
Making App. False Sworn	2
Statement 1	2
Making Graffiti	1
Making Punishable False Written	4
Statemen	1
Making Terrorist Threat	3
Manslaughter 2: Reckless Death	1
Menacing 2	158
Menacing 3	3
Misapplication Property	1
Murder 1	16

Primary Charge	# Cases
Murder 2	16
Murder 2, Att.	8
No Interlocking System	6
Obstructing Govt'l Administration	
2	66
Open Container	2
Oper MV .08 of 1% ALC 1	1
Oper MV Impaired by Alcohol	2
Oper MV Impaired by Drugs 1st	4
Oper MV INFL ALC or Drugs-1	4
(M)	4
Oper MV While Intoxicated 1st	1
Oper MV-Registration Suspended	4
Oper Spec Veh Impaired Druges	1
1st	
Operate MV w/.10% and DWI	3
Operate Unregistered Vessel	2
Order to Show Cause	1
Parole Violation	92
Paternity	81
Patronizing a Prostitute 4	1
Pedestrian Fail Yield - Other than	2
Xwalk	
Person w/Restriction Use Car	1
W/out Interlock	461
Petit Larceny	461
Petit Larceny, Att. Possess child sexual	2
performance	1
Possess Forged Inst 2, Att.	3
Possession Burglar's Tools	9
Possession Dangerous	9
Contraband in Prison	5
Possession of Alcohol in Public	1
Predatory Sex Assault Against	
Child	2
Predatory Sexual Assault	1
Prohibited Use of Weapon	2
Promoting Prison Contraband 1	13
Promoting Prison Contraband 2	6

Primary Charge	# Cases
Public Lewdness	4
Rape 1	6
Rape 2	3
Reckless Driving	7
Reckless Endangerment 1	10
Reckless Endangerment 2	11
Reckless Endangerment of	11
Property	6
Resentence (F)	5
Resentence (M)	1
Resisting Arrest	58
Rioting 1st	1
Robbery 1	21
Robbery 1, Att.	1
Robbery 1: Deadly Weapon	2
Robbery 1: Display Firearm	5
Robbery 2	24
Robbery 2, Att.	2
Robbery 3	16
RTA Assault 1	1
RTA Burg 1	2
RTA Burg 3 ATT	2
RTA Burglary 3	4
RTA Crim Poss Controlled Subs 3	1
RTA Crim Poss Weapon 2	4
(loaded firearm)	1
RTA Criminal Mischief 2	1
RTA Criminal Mischief 3	2
RTA Criminal Poss Weapon 2	17
RTA Criminal Poss Weapon 3	1
RTA Criminal Poss. Controlled	1
Substance 1	I
RTA Criminal Poss. Stolen	8
Property 3	0
RTA Criminal Poss. Stolen	5
Property 4	
RTA False Reporting Inc 2	2
RTA Grand Larceny 4	1
RTA Murder	6
RTA Rob 1	5

Primary Charge	# Cases
RTA Rob 2	12
RTA Rob 2 Att	2
RTA Sex Abuse 1	1
RTA VOP (Fel)	4
RTA- Grand Larceny 3	4
Security Guard-No Valid Reg	1
Card	1
Sentence Violation (M)	1
Sexual Abuse 1	1
Sexual Abuse 2	2
Sexual Abuse 3	1
Sexual Misconduct	4
SORA Resentencing	1
Stalking 3	1
Stalking 4	1
Strangulation 2nd	6
Support	45
Surrogate Court Other	2
Suspended Registration	7
Taking Fish by Snagging	8
Tampering w/Witness 3	1
Theft of Services	2
Trespass	97
Unauthorized Use Motor Vehicle 1	1
Unauthorized Use Motor Vehicle 3	121
Uninsured MV	1
Unlaw Cannabis	1
Unlawful	
Dissemination/publication of	3
Intimate Ima	
Unlawful Fleeing Police Office in	11
MV 3	
Unlawful Imprisonment 1	1
Unlawful Imprisonment 2	10
Unlawful Poss. Radio Devices	1
Unlawfully Dealing With Child	4
Unlicensed Operator	9

Primary Charge	# Cases
Unsecured Firearm	1
Unsecured Stored Firearm	1
Use of Dangerous Weapon (M)	1
Vehicular Assault 2:Inj	2
Vehicular Assault 1	1
Vehicular Manslaughter 1	1
Violate Condition of Sentence	3
Violation Conditional Discharge	9
Violation Probation (F)	51
Violation Probation (M)	94
Witness	16
Z RETAINED CASE	2
Z-Miscellaneous Family Court	1
Total # Cases:	7612

2023 Case by Case Disposition

Disposition	Total
A.C.D.	504
Abated by Death	15
Absconded	3
ACD Restored	1
ACD W/Conditions	179
Acquittal, Including TC	6
Admit Petition*	1
Affirmed Opinion	3
Affirmed Respondent's Appeal	1
Appeal Discontinued	3
Appeal Judgment - Affirmed	14

Disposition	Total
Appeal Judgment - Modified	1
Appeal Judgment - Reversed	3
Bench Trial - Acquittal	15
Bench Trial - Guilty Lesser	11
Bench Trial - Guilty Original	10
Bench Warrant	73
Client Retained Own Counsel	5
Closed Administratively	4
Conflict of Interest	5
Consolidated - Other Charges	2
Court Action - Discontinued	2
Court Ordered Restoration	1
Covered by Plea - Other Charge	73
Denied*	2
Dismissal On Motion*	135
Dismissal On Stipulation*	6
Dismissal*	398
Dismissed - CPL 30.30	499
Dismissed - Felony Complaint	10
Dismissed - Indictment	15
Dismissed - Information	20
Dismissed - Plea in Satisfaction	122

Disposition	Total
Dismissed After Hearing*	9
Dismissed After Trial*	7
Dismissed W/Out Prejudice*	2
Dismissed With Prejudice*	4
Drug CT	2
Duplicate File	3
Extradition Granted	1
Failure To Prosecute	37
Felony TC, Plea To Lesser A	9
Felony TC, Conv TC At Trial	2
Felony TC, Guilty Plea To TC	11
In Furtherance Of Justice	2
Incompetent to Stand Trial	16
Jury Trial - Acquittal	15
Jury Trial - Guilty Lesser	9
Jury Trial - Guilty Original	37
Misdemeanor TC, Conv Lesser Trial	1
Misdemeanor TC, Guilty Plea To TC	4
Misdemeanor TC, Plea To Lesser	4
No Bill - Grand Jury	147
Order Continued*	1
Order of Protection*	1

Disposition	Total
Order Terminated*	1
Other	85
Other Dismissal*	2
Parole Pled Guilty*	16
Pet Dismissed W/Out Prejudice*	1
Petition Dismissed*	1
Petition Withdrawn*	1
Plea To Reduced Charge	818
Plea To Top Charge	329
Probation	13
Probation Extended	4
Relieved By Court	37
Resentenced	4
Revoke & Restore	23
Revoke & Restore Other	2
Sora Level1	2
Sora Level2	2
Stipulated Agreement*	2
Surrender W/O Cond	1
Transfer to Drug Ct	3
Transfer to Family Court	20
Transfer to IDV	1

Disposition	Total
Trial Order of Dismissal	4
Vacate Order*	1
Verdict Not Resp (Mental Disease)	1
Viol TC, Conv of TC At Trial	2
Viol TC, Plea To Lesser	8
VOP Dismissed	7
VOP Guilty Plea	42
VOP Restored	8
VOP Sustained After Hearing	1
Waived	3
WGJ No Final Dispo	1,083
Withdrawn By Client*	2
Withdrawn*	14
Y.O. Adjudication	5
Grand Total	5,015